
The complete SolTrans Board Meeting Packet is available on STA’s Website at www.sta.ca.gov  
 

S o l T r a n s  
 

SOLANO COUNTY TRANSIT 
BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

(REVISED AS OF JUNE 13, 2011) 
 

4:00 p.m., Regular Meeting  
Thursday, June 16, 2011 

Vallejo Council Chambers 
 
 

 
Public Comment:  Pursuant to the Brown Act, the public has an opportunity to speak on any matter on the agenda or, for 
matters not on the agenda, issues within the subject matter jurisdiction of the agency.  Comments are limited to no more than 
3 minutes per speaker unless modified by the Board Chair, Gov’t Code § 54954.3(a).  By law, no action may be taken on any 
item raised during the public comment period (Agenda Item  IV) although informational answers to questions may be given 
and matters may be referred to staff  for placement on a future agenda of the agency.   
 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA):  This agenda is available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a 
disability, as required by the ADA of 1990 (42 U.S.C. §12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Govt. Code §54954.2).  
Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation should contact Johanna Masiclat, Clerk of the Board, 
at (707) 424-6008 during regular business hours at least 24 hours prior to the time of the meeting. 
 

Staff Reports:  Staff reports are available for inspection at the STA Offices, One Harbor Center, Suite 130, Suisun City 
during regular business hours, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday-Friday.  You may also contact the Clerk of the Board via 
email at jmasiclat@sta-snci.com.  Supplemental Reports:  Any reports or other materials that are issued after the agenda has 
been distributed may be reviewed by contacting the STA Clerk of the Board and copies of any such supplemental materials 
will be available on the table at the entry to the meeting room. 
 

Agenda Times:  Times set forth on the agenda are estimates.  Items may be heard before or after the times shown. 
 
 
 

ITEM BOARD/STAFF PERSON 

I CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE                                  Osby Davis, Mayor 
(4:00 – 4:05 p.m.)                                                                                                  City of Vallejo 
 

II. CONFIRM QUORUM/ STATEMENT OF CONFLICT                           Johanna Masiclat 
Clerk of the Board for the STA 

An official who has a conflict must, prior to consideration of the decision; (1) publicly identify in detail the 
financial interest that causes the conflict; (2) recuse himself/herself from discussing and voting on the matter; (3) 
leave the room until after the decision has been made. Cal. Gov’t Code § 87200. 

 
III APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
IV. OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 

(4:05 – 4:10 p.m.) 
 

 
SOLTRANS BOARD MEMBERS 

 
Elizabeth Patterson Mike Ioakimedes Osby Davis Erin Hannigan Jim Spering Harry Price 

      
City of Benicia City of Benicia City of Vallejo City of Vallejo MTC Representative STA Ex-Officio 

      
Alternate Board Member 

Mark Hughes 
 

Alternate Board Member 
Stephanie Gomes 

 

  
  
  

      

 

http://www.sta.ca.gov/
mailto:jmasiclat@sta-snci.com


The complete SolTrans Board Meeting Packet is available on STA’s Website at www.sta.ca.gov  
 

V. COMMENTS FROM STAFF 
(4:10 – 4:15 p.m.) 
 

 

VI. CONSENT CALENDAR 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following consent items in one motion. 
(Note: Items under consent calendar may be removed for separate discussion.) 
(4:15 - 4:20 p.m.) 

 
 A. Meeting Minutes of May 19, 2011 

Recommendation: 
Approve the meeting minutes of May 19, 2011. 
Pg. 1 
 

Johanna Masiclat, 
STA 

VII. ACTION ITEMS – ADMINISTRATIVE/FINANCE 
 

 A. FTA Compliance Requirements and Authorizing Resolution  
Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Adopt the SolTrans Equal Employment Opportunity Policy as 
set forth in Attachment A; 

2. Adopt the Title VI Programs as set forth in Attachment B; 
and 

3. Resolution No. 2011-05 authorizing the filing of applications 
with the Federal Transit Administration as specified in 
Attachment C1. 

(4:20 – 4:30 p.m.) 
Pg. 7 
 

Nancy Whelan, 
Finance Consultant 

 B. Approval of Master Transfer Agreement with Vallejo and 
Benicia  
Recommendation: 
Authorize the Chair to execute all documents and take such further 
action as may be necessary in order to facilitate the transfer of 
operations and assets from the City of Benicia and City of Vallejo to 
SolTrans. 
(4:30 – 4:40 p.m.) 
Pg. 31 
 

Bernadette Curry, 
Legal Counsel 

VIII. ACTION ITEMS – PLANNING AND OPERATIONS 
 

 A. Approval of Contract with MV Corporation for Consolidated 
Transit Services Contingent Upon Receipt of FTA Grantee 
Status Prior to June 30, 2011 
Recommendation: 
Authorize the Chair to execute a new operating agreement with MV 
Corporation for consolidated transit services contingent upon 
approval of FTA Grantee status prior to June 30, 2011.  
(4:40 – 4:45 p.m.) 
Pg. 33 
 

Bernadette Curry, 
Legal Counsel 

http://www.sta.ca.gov/


The complete SolTrans Board Meeting Packet is available on STA’s Website at www.sta.ca.gov  
 

IX. INFORMATIONAL  

 A. Short Range Transit Plan (SRTP) Update 
(4:45 – 4:50 p.m.) 
Pg. 35 
 

Jeanine Wooley,  
City of Vallejo and 

Moore & Associates 
 

 B. Five Year Budget Projection 
(4:50 – 4:55 p.m.) 
Pg. 37 
 

Nancy Whelan, 
Finance Consultant 

 

X. BOARD MEMBERS COMMENTS 
 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 
The next regular meeting of the SolTrans Board is tentatively scheduled for Thursday,  
July 21, 2011, 4:00 p.m., Benicia Council Chambers. 
 

 

http://www.sta.ca.gov/


This page intentionally left blank. 



Agenda Item VI.A 
June 16, 2011 

S o l T r a n s  
 

SOLANO COUNTY TRANSIT (SOLTRANS) 
Draft Board Minutes for Meeting of 

May 19, 2011 
 

I. CLOSED SESSION 
Chair Davis called the Closed Session meeting of the SolTrans Board to order at 3:30 p.m. at 
Benicia City Hall. 
 
There were no matters to report. 
 

II CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Davis called the meeting of the SolTrans Board to order at 4:05 p.m.  A quorum was 
confirmed. 
 

 MEMBERS 
PRESENT: 

 
Elizabeth Patterson, Mayor 

 
City of Benicia, Vice Chair 

  Mike Ioakimedes, Councilmember City of Benicia 
  Osby Davis, Mayor City of Vallejo, Chair 
  Erin Hannigan, Councilmember City of Vallejo 
  Jim Spering, Supervisor, 

County of Solano  
MTC Representative 

  Harry Price, Mayor, 
City of Fairfield 

Ex-Officio – STA Representative 

    
 MEMBERS 

ABSENT: 
 

None.  

 STAFF  
PRESENT: 

 
In Alphabetical Order by Last Name: 

  Greg Anderson City of Vallejo 
  Joy Apilado STA HR Consultant 
  Bernadette Curry  SolTrans Legal Counsel 
  Daryl Halls STA Executive Director 
  John Harris STA Project Manager - Consultant 
  Johanna Masiclat STA Clerk of the Board 
  Elizabeth Richards STA Director of Transit and Rideshare 

Services 
  Rob Sousa City of Benicia 
  Nancy Whelan STA Transit Finance Consultant 
  Jeanine Wooley City of Vallejo 
    
 OTHERS 

PRESENT: 
 
In Alphabetical Order by Last Name: 

  Tom Bartee SolTrans PAC Member 
  Mona Babauta City of Fairfield 
  Derik Calhoun MV Transportation 
  JB Davis Patch.com 

1



  Michael Eshleman Moore & Associates 
  Jackie Lane MV Transportation 
  Jim McElroy Proposed Interim Executive Director  
  Brian McLean City of Vacaville 
  Paul Page Page Design 
    

III. CONFIRM QUORUM/STATEMENT OF CONFLICT 
A quorum was confirmed by the Clerk of the Board.  There was no Statement of Conflict declared 
at this time. 
 

IV. 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
On a motion by Vice Chair Patterson, and a second by Board Member Hannigan, the SolTrans 
Board approved the agenda. 
 

V. 
 

OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 
None presented. 
 

VI. COMMENTS FROM STAFF: 
A. Vallejo Transit Center Status presented by Jeanine Wooley 
B. Consultant Introductions by John Harris 

• Moore & Associates - Short Range Transit Plan (SRTP) 
• Page Design Group –Branding and Marketing Contract 

 
VII. CONSENT CALENDAR 

On a motion by Board Member Spering, and a second by Vice Chair Patterson, the SolTrans JPA 
Board approved Consent Calendar Items A and B.   
 

 A. Meeting Minutes of April 21, 2011 
Recommendation: 
Approve the meeting minutes of April 21, 2011. 
 

 B. Transportation Development Act (TDA), State Transit Assistance Funds (STAF) and 
Regional Measure 2 (RM2) Claims 
Recommendation: 
Adopt the following: 

1. Resolution No. 2011-03 for SolTrans FY 2011-12 allocation request for TDA funds 
and STAF; and 

2. Resolution No. 2011-04 for SolTrans FY 2011-12 allocation request for RM2 funds 
for operating.  

 
VIII. ACTION ITEMS – ADMINISTRATIVE/FINANCE 

 
 A. Updated Proposed SolTrans Staff Benefits and  Salary Recommendations 

Joy Apilado presented the Human Resources Subcommittee recommendations for Salary and 
Benefit Plans.  She identified the goals for evaluating salary and benefit options, proposed 
staff, retirement options to be considered, and the subcommittee’s recommendation for 
retirement benefits. 
 

  Public Comments: 
None presented. 
 

2



  Board Comments: 
After discussion and careful consideration, the SolTrans Board approved the SolTrans Salary 
and Benefits (CalPERS Retirement of 2.0% at age 60 at the highest consecutive 36 months 
of salary) as proposed and recommended by the Human Resources Subcommittee. 
 

  Recommendation: 
Approve SolTrans Salary and Benefits as proposed and recommended by the Human 
Resources Subcommittee. 
 

  On a motion by Board Member Hannigan, and a second by Board Member Spering, the 
SolTrans Board approved the recommendation. 
 

 B. Interim Executive Director for Solano County Transit JPA 
At this time, Daryl Halls introduced Jim McElroy, proposed Interim Executive Director, who 
would take the lead in guiding the new organization so that it can prepare the organization 
for hiring employees, holding administrative and service contracts, and performing its 
financial duties in accordance with local, regional, State and Federal guidelines.   
 

  Public Comments: 
None presented. 
 

  Board Comments: 
None presented. 
 

  Recommendation: 
Request the STA to enter into a contract with Jim McElroy to serve as the Interim Executive 
Director for SolTrans as defined by the Scope of Services shown in Attachment B. 
 

  On a motion by Vice Chair Patterson, and a second by Board Member Hannigan, the 
SolTrans Board approved the recommendation. 
 

 C. FTA Compliance Requirements and Status 
Nancy Whelan reviewed several policies and programs that will be in place to meet FTA 
requirements to be an eligible grantee.  She outlined and recommended adoption of the DBE 
Policy and Goals, Public Participation Process for Fare and Service Changes and Drug Free 
Workplace Policy.   
 

  Public Comments: 
None presented. 
 

  Board Comments: 
Under the Policy Statement for the SolTrans DBE Program, Vice Chair Patterson requested 
to add under Section 26.45, Overall Goals, the Benicia Times Herald for publication of the 
notice of the proposed overall goals. 
 

3



  Recommendation: 
Approve the following 

1. Adopt the SolTrans DBE policy and program as set forth in Attachment A; 
2. Authorize publication of the overall Disadvantaged Business Enterprise goals for FY 

2011 as set forth in Attachment A; 
3. Adopt the SolTrans Public Participation Policy for Fare and Service Changes as set 

forth in Attachment B; and 
4. Adopt the SolTrans Drug Free Workplace Policy as set forth in Attachment C. 

 
  On a motion by Vice Chair Patterson, and a second by Board Member Hannigan, the 

SolTrans Board approved the recommendation. 
 

 D. FY 2011-12 SolTrans Operating Budget 
Nancy Whelan identified the availability of TDA reserves and the projected fuel prices as 
issues to be addressed in the FY 2012 SolTrans Budget.  She cited that the contract 
negotiating team is underway and has identified an annual contract savings ranging between 
$1 million to $1.5 million.  She added that the transition team is estimating that contract 
savings of $1,250,000 will be achieved. 
 

  Public Comments: 
None presented. 
 

  Board Comments: 
Vice Chair Patterson and Board Member Spering commented on fuel contracts and reducing 
measures on fuel costs. 
 

  Recommendation: 
Approve the FY 2012 SolTrans annual operating budget in the amount of $13,000,015, as 
specified in Attachment A. 
 

  On a motion by Board Member Spering, and a second by Vice Chair Patterson, the SolTrans 
Board approved the recommendation. 
 

IX. ACTION ITEMS – PLANNING AND OPERATIONS 
 

 A. Approve Recommendation for Approval of Contract between Cities of Benicia and 
Vallejo and MV Transportation 
Bernadette Curry reviewed the negotiating process with representatives from MV 
Transportation and a revised agreement will be presented to the respective City Councils in 
either late May or early June.  She added that staff has negotiated a comprehensive 
maintenance plan which will be incorporated into the new contract addressing responsibility 
for key functions related to vehicle and facility servicing. 
 

  Public Comments: 
None presented. 
 

  Board Comments: 
None presented. 
 

4



  Recommendation: 
Authorize SolTrans Legal Counsel to send a recommendation of support to the City Councils 
of Benicia and Vallejo for the approval of a new operating agreement between the cities of 
Benicia and Vallejo and MV Transportation. 
 

  On a motion by Board Member Spering, and a second by Board Member Hannigan, the 
SolTrans Board approved the recommendation. 
 

X. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS  
 

 A. None presented. 
 

XI. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 

XII. ADJOURNMENT  
 

 The meeting was adjourned at  5:15 p.m.  The next regular meeting of the SolTrans Board is 
scheduled for Thursday, June 16, 2011, 4:00 p.m., Vallejo Council Chambers. 
 

 Attested by: 
 
 
 
                                                      6/13/2011 
Johanna Masiclat                          Date 
Clerk of the Board 
 

 

5



This page intentionally left blank. 

6



Agenda Item VII.A 
June 16, 2011 

 
Solano County Transit 

(SolTrans) 
 
DATE:  June 9, 2011 
TO:  SolTrans Board 
FROM: Nancy Whelan, Financial Consultant 
RE:  FTA Compliance Requirements and Authorizing Resolution 
 
 
Discussion:  
To become a Federal Transit Administration (FTA) grantee, SolTrans must demonstrate 
technical, legal, and financial capacity to manage the transit system.  Additionally, 
SolTrans will be required to provide Certifications and Assurances for FTA Assistance 
Programs to be able to draw on FTA grant funds. 
 
Over the past three months the Board has adopted several policies and programs to meet 
FTA requirements to be an eligible grantee. The following policies and programs are 
presented for consideration at the June 16th SolTrans Board meeting. 
 

• Equal Employment Opportunity Policy 
• Title VI Program 

 
In addition, FTA requires the governing Board to approve a resolution authorizing the 
transit agency to apply for federal grants.   
 
Equal Employment Opportunity Policy 
Grantees must ensure that no person in the United States shall on the grounds of race, 
color, religion, national origin, sex, age, or disability be excluded from participating in or 
denied the benefits of, or be subject to discrimination in employment under any project, 
program, or activity receiving Federal financial assistance under the Federal transit laws. 
A formal EEO program is required of any grantee that both employed 50 or more transit-
related employees and received in excess of $1 million in capital or operating assistance 
or in excess of $250,000 in planning assistance in the previous Federal fiscal year.  
SolTrans is not required to have a formal EEO program, as it does not meet the threshold 
requirement. However, an EEO policy provides a statement to employees, stakeholders, 
and the public that SolTrans does not discriminate in employment.  
 
The EEO policy statement is included in Attachment A. It states that SolTrans will not 
discriminate with respect to recruitment, hiring, training, promotion, and other terms 
and conditions of employment.   It also provides a process for EEO complaints to be 
filed and resolved with the agency. 
 
Title VI Report 
Every three years grantees must submit a Title VI program that documents their 
compliance with FTA Circular 4702.1A.  The objectives outlined in the Circular are: 

7



a. Ensure that the level and quality of transportation service is provided without 
regard to race, color, or national origin;  

b. Identify and address, as appropriate, disproportionately high and adverse human 
health and environmental effects, including social and economic effects of 
programs and activities on minority populations and low-income populations;  

c. Promote the full and fair participation of all affected populations in 
transportation decision making;  

d. Prevent the denial, reduction, or delay in benefits related to programs and 
activities that benefit minority populations or low-income populations;  

e. Ensure meaningful access to programs and activities by persons with limited 
English proficiency.   

On June 8, 2010, Vallejo Transit submitted its Title VI report to FTA.  It is included as 
Attachment B. The report addresses public outreach and involvement activities, a plan for 
providing language assistance for persons with limited English proficiency, and the 
process used to investigate and track Title VI complaints.  The Title VI program 
submitted by Vallejo Transit is valid through 2013. By adopting the Title VI program as 
its own, SolTrans will be responsible for the implementation of the plans and procedures 
contained in the attached report.  Updates to the program may be required with changes 
to the SolTrans service or at the request of FTA.  
 
Authorizing Resolution 
FTA Circular 9030.1C provides guidelines for the preparation of grant applications to 
obtain Federal assistance for transit projects under the Urbanized Area Formula Program. 
First time grant applicants must submit an authorizing resolution and an opinion of 
counsel.  
 
The authorizing resolution (Attachment C1) is being presented for approval at the June 
16, 2011 SolTrans Board meeting.  The Authorizing Resolution requires the applicant, 
SolTrans, to have received authority from the Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
(MTC) to apply for Urbanized Area Formula Program assistance.  MTC’s Programming 
and Allocations Committee recommended approval of that authority on June 8, 2011.  
The Metropolitan Transportation Commission is scheduled to consider final approval 
authorizing SolTrans to apply for Urbanized Area Formula Program assistance on June 
22, 2011. 
 
The Opinion of Counsel is attached (Attachment C2) as information and will be executed 
by Legal Counsel upon approval of the EEO policy and Title VI report and MTC’s final 
authorization.  The executed Opinion of Counsel will be submitted to FTA with the 
Authorizing Resolution. 
 
With the adoption of these policies, approval of the authorizing resolution, MTC’s 
authorization for SolTrans to apply for federal funds, and the executed Opinion of 
Counsel, SolTrans will have met the minimum requirements to become an eligible FTA 
grantee.   

8



Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Adopt the SolTrans Equal Employment Opportunity policy as set forth in 
Attachment A; 

2. Adopt the Title VI program as set forth in Attachment B; and  
3. Resolution 2011-05 authorizing the filing of applications with the Federal Transit 

Administration as specified in Attachment C1. 
 
Attachments: 

A. SolTrans Equal Employment Opportunity Policy 
B. Title VI Program 
C1. Resolution 2011-05 Authorizing the filing of applications with the Federal Transit 

 Administration 
      C2.  The Opinion of Counsel

9



This page intentionally left blank. 

10



ATTACHMENT A 
 

SolTrans 
 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY POLICY 
 
 
SolTrans policy prohibits unlawful discrimination based on race, color, creed, gender, religion, 
marital status, registered domestic partner status, age, national origin or ancestry, physical or 
mental disability, medical condition including genetic characteristics, sexual orientation, or 
any other consideration made unlawful by federal, state, or local laws. It also prohibits 
unlawful discrimination based on the perception that anyone has any of those 
characteristics, or is associated with a person who has or is perceived as having any of those 
characteristics.  All such discrimination is unlawful. 
 
SolTrans is committed to compliance with all applicable laws providing equal employment 
opportunities.  This commitment applies to all persons involved in SolTrans operations and 
prohibits unlawful discrimination by any employee of SolTrans, including supervisors and 
coworkers.  SolTrans considers the attainment of equal employment a major objective and is 
committed to providing equal employment opportunities to all qualified persons. 
 
SolTrans will not discriminate with respect to recruitment, hiring, training, promotion, and 
other terms and conditions of employment.   SolTrans is an EEO employer and makes 
employment decisions on the basis of merit.  All other personnel actions or programs such 
as compensation, benefits, transfers, layoffs, recalls, SolTrans-sponsored training, education, 
tuition assistance, social and recreational programs will be administered in a non-
discriminatory manner.  All employment decisions shall be consistent with the principle of 
EEO. 
 
An employee who believes that they have been subject to any form of unlawful discrimination 
shall provide a verbal or written complaint to the Executive Director.  The complaint must be 
specific and must include the names of the individuals involved and the names of any 
witnesses. SolTrans will immediately undertake an effective, thorough, and objective 
investigation and attempt to resolve the situation.  If the complaint is against the Executive 
Director, the employee shall make the complaint to the Chair of the SolTrans Board or the 
SolTrans Legal Counsel. 
 
If SolTrans determines that unlawful discrimination has occurred, effective remedial action 
will be taken commensurate with the severity of the offense. Appropriate action also will be 
taken to deter any future discrimination.  SolTrans will not retaliate against the employee for 
filing a complaint and will not knowingly permit retaliation by management employees or 
coworkers. 
 
Approved:  
 
___________________________________   _______________ 
Executive Director      Date 

11



 

12



13

JMasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



ATTACHMENT C1 
 
 

RESOLUTION No. 2011-05 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE FILING APPLICATIONS WITH THE FEDERAL 
TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION, AN OPERATING ADMINISTRATION FOR THE  

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, FOR FEDERAL 
TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORIZED BY 49 U.S.C. CHAPTER 53;  

TITLE 23. UNITED STATES CODE, OR OTHER FEDERAL STATUES 
ADMINISTERED BY THE FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 

 
WHEREAS, the Federal Transit Administrator has been delegated authority to award Federal financial 
assistance for a transportation project; 
 
WHEREAS, the grant or cooperative agreement for Federal financial assistance will impose certain 
obligations upon the Applicant, and may require the Applicant to provide the local share of the project 
cost; 
 
WHEREAS, the Applicant has or will provide all annual certifications and assurances to the Federal 
Transit Administration required for the project; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY the Solano County Transit (SolTrans) Board of 
Directors 

1. That the Operations and Planning Manager is authorized to execute and file an application for 
Federal assistance on behalf of Solano County Transit with the Federal Transit Administration for 
Federal assistance authorized by 49 U.S.C. Chapter 53, title 23, United States Code, or other 
Federal statutes authorizing a project administered by the Federal Transit Administration.  This 
authorization is contingent upon the Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s authorization for 
Solano County Transit to apply for Urbanized Area Formula Program assistance. 
 

2. That Operations and Planning Manager is authorized to execute and file with its applications the 
annual certifications and assurances and other documents the Federal Transit Administration 
requires before awarding a Federal assistance grant or cooperative agreement. 
 
That Operations and Planning Manager is authorized to execute grant and cooperative agreements 
with the Federal Transit Administration on behalf of Solano County Transit. 
 

3. That Operations and Planning Manager is authorized to execute grant and cooperative 
agreements with the Federal Transit Administration on behalf of Solano County Transit. 

 
Passed and adopted by the Solano County Transit (SolTrans) Board at its regular meeting on June 16, 
2011, by the following vote: 

 
 
AYES:  _____________________________ 
NOES:  _____________________________ 
EXCUSED:  _____________________________ 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Osby Davis, Chair 
Solano County Transit 

27



 
ATTEST: 
 
By: ______________________________  

 
The undersigned duly qualified Clerk of the Board, acting on behalf of Solano County Transit, certifies 
that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted at a legally convened meeting of 
Solano County Transit held on June 16, 2011. 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Johanna Masiclat  
 
      ______________________________________ 
      SolTrans, Clerk of the Board 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      (Date) 

28



Attachment C2 

OPINION OF COUNSEL 

 
Solano County Transit (SolTrans) 
311 Sacramento Street 
Vallejo, CA 94590 
 
Dear Chairman Davis: 
 
This communication will serve as the requisite opinion of counsel to be filed with the Federal Transit 
Administration, United States Department of Transportation, in connection with the application of Solano 
County Transit (SolTrans) for Federal transportation assistance authorized by 49 U.S.C. Chapter 53; title 
23, United States Code; and other Federal statutes authorizing activities administered by the Federal 
Transit Administration. 
 
Solano County Transit has received authority from the Designated Recipient to apply for and receive 
Urbanized Area Formula Program assistance. 
 
Citations to laws, regulations, etc. establishing the legal authority of Solano County Transit to carry out 
transportation projects for which Federal assistance is sought is set forth below: 
 

1.  Solano County Transit, pursuant to the Solano County Transit Joint Powers Agreement entered 
into between the City of Benicia, the City of Vallejo and the Solano Transportation Authority 
pursuant to Government Code sections 6500 et seq, is the agency created to merge the presently 
existing transit services in Benicia and Vallejo and expand the provision of such transit services 
to include, but not be limited to, normal and customary intra-city bus transit, intercity transit, 
paratransit services, dial-a-ride, and connecting transit to other transportation providers, such as 
BART and/or the Capitol Corridor commuter train. 
 

2. The authority of Solano County Transit to provide funds for the local share of the project is set 
forth in the annual budget and resolutions approved by the Solano County Transit Board of 
Directors to apply for funding to be used as the local share for the project.  
 

3. I have reviewed the pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, and I have concluded that there is no 
legal impediment to your filing an application for the project for which Solano County Transit 
seeks assistance.  Furthermore, as a result of my examination, I find that there is no pending or 
threatened litigation of other action which might in any way adversely affect to proposed project 
or the capability of Solano County Transit to carry out the project. 
 

Sincerely, 
 
____________________________________________ 
Bernadette Curry 
Legal Counsel 

29



This page intentionally left blank. 

30



Agenda Item VII.B 
June 16, 2011 

Solano County Transit 
(SolTrans) 

 
DATE:  June 13, 2011 
TO:  SolTrans Board 
FROM: Bernadette Curry, SolTrans Legal Counsel  
RE: Approval of Master Transfer Agreement with Vallejo and Benicia 
 
 
Discussion:  
The language in the Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) that formed SolTrans required each City to 
continue operating its transit system until such time as SolTrans received approval of its status as 
a qualified grantee by necessary grantors, including the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 
and the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC).  Once such grantee status is obtained, 
each City would transfer designated transit related assets, personal property, rolling stock and 
equipment to SolTrans unless the property cannot be transferred due to a lien or leasehold 
interest that cannot be released.   
 
With the scheduled approval by the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) at its June 
22, 2011 meeting of SolTrans’ Transportation Development Act (TDA) claim, SolTrans will be 
the recipient of TDA, State Transit Assistance, and Regional Measure 2 funds.  This action will 
result in operating revenue of $6.6 million being made available to SolTrans, with the first 
allocation being made in July 2011. Additionally, MTC’s June 22, 2011 approval of SolTrans as 
an authorized recipient of federal transit formula funds is one of the two remaining approvals 
required for FTA grantee status. The transition team and respective staffs from the Cities have 
been working to determine which operations and assets need to be transferred for the transition 
of operations to SolTrans and the appropriate mechanism to document such transfer of 
responsibility.  
 
Both Benicia and Vallejo delegated authority to the respective City Managers to execute all 
documents and take such further action necessary to accomplish the goals contemplated by the 
SolTrans JPA, including but not limited to, transferring the grant funds and designated personal 
and real property assets subject to obtaining the requisite grantee status and no asset will be 
transferred that is subject to a lien.  Staff had originally anticipated that SolTrans would not 
become an eligible FTA grantee until sometime in July of 2011. With the approval by the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) at its June 22, 2011 meeting, staff now 
anticipates that FTA grantee eligibility will be granted before June 30, 2011.  When that 
milestone is achieved, the actual transfer of operations and the majority of assets will need to be 
transferred to SolTrans. 
 
If that milestone is not achieved, a transfer of operations to SolTrans will still need to occur with 
actual title to the assets transferring when FTA grantee status is achieved.  
 
Staff is requesting that the Chair also be delegated on behalf of SolTrans to execute any such 
document between either or both of the Cities necessary to effectuate the intent of the JPA and 
the transfer of operations and assets to SolTrans.  
 

31



Fiscal Impact: 
The estimated costs of the transfer of operations and assets are included in SolTrans’ budget for 
FY 2011-12. 
 
Recommendation: 
Authorize the Chair to execute all documents and take such further action as may be necessary in 
order to facilitate the transfer of operations and assets from the City of Benicia and the City of 
Vallejo to SolTrans. 
 

32



Agenda Item VIII.A 
June 16, 2011 

Solano County Transit 
(SolTrans) 

 
DATE:  June 13, 2011 
TO:  SolTrans Board 
FROM: Bernadette Curry, SolTrans Legal Counsel  
RE: Approval of Contract with MV Corporation for Consolidated Transit Services 

Contingent Upon Receipt of FTA Grantee Status Prior to June 30, 2011 
 
 
Background: 
At your Board’s last meeting, staff recommended that your Board authorize SolTrans Legal 
Counsel to send a recommendation of support to the City Councils of Benicia and Vallejo for the 
approval of a new operating agreement between the cities of Benicia and Vallejo and MV 
Transportation. 
 
Key changes to the proposed contract are the cost savings attributable to the consolidation 
achieved though staffing reductions at all levels and reduction in lease payments for the Bennett 
Street property.  In addition, staff has negotiated a comprehensive maintenance plan which will 
be incorporated into the new contract addressing responsibility for key functions related to 
vehicle and facility servicing.  
 
Discussion:  
Since that time, staff has continued the negotiations with MV Corporation to finalize the details 
of the consolidated service (MV contract).  Becoming an eligible FTA grantee is a requirement 
of the JPA before the MV contract could be assigned to SolTrans.  Staff had originally 
anticipated that SolTrans would not become an eligible FTA grantee until sometime in July of 
2011 at which point, the MV contract would have been assigned to SolTrans. With the approval 
by the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) authorizing SolTrans to apply for 
Urbanized Area Formula Program assistance at its June 22, 2011 meeting, staff now anticipates 
that FTA grantee eligibility will be granted before June 30, 2011.  
Given the timing of the approval of the contract by the respective Councils of the cities of 
Benicia and Vallejo in proximity to when staff anticipates becoming an eligible FTA grantee, 
staff is now recommending that should the FTA grantee status be determined prior to June 30, 
2011, that SolTrans, as opposed to the cities of Benicia and Vallejo, execute the contract with 
MV Corporation which would relieve both Cities of its contractual responsibility and alleviate 
the need to assign the contract to SolTrans at a later date.  
 
In the unlikely event that SolTrans does not become an eligible FTA grantee prior to June 30, 
2011, the cities of Benicia and Vallejo will be requested to execute the new agreement and 
assign the contract as soon as feasible.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
The estimated annual cost of the contract is approximately $8.8 million to be paid from 
Transportation Development Act (“TDA”) funding.  Staff is still refining the last issues and will 
present a full summary at your Board’s meeting on June 16, 2011. 
 
Recommendation: 
Authorize the Chair to execute a new operating agreement with MV Corporation for 
consolidated transit services contingent upon approval of FTA Grantee status prior to June 30, 
2011.  

33



This page intentionally left blank. 

34



Agenda Item IX.A 
June 16, 2011 

 
Solano County Transit 

(SolTrans) 
 
DATE:  June 16, 2011 
TO:  SolTrans Board 
FROM: Jeanine Wooley, City of Vallejo 
RE:  Short Range Transit Plan (SRTP) Status 
 
 
Discussion: 
The contract with Moore & Associates included conducting a Mandatory National Transit 
Database (NTD) passenger sampling as required by the Federal Transit Administration 
(FTA).   It was necessary to complete this task prior to the end of the school year to ensure 
passenger data represented typical annual ridership.  This task was completed June 1, 2011.   
Subsequently, a kick off meeting for the SRTP was held on June 8, 2011 with Moore & 
Associates Project Manager and City of Vallejo Transportation staff.  Operational data 
including the service realignment previously completed by Vallejo staff has been requested 
by Moore & Associates to begin the service analysis phase of the SRTP.   
 
As of the above date this project is on schedule. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
MTC has entered into an agreement with the City of Vallejo to complete the SRTP on 
behalf of SolTrans.  FTA section 5303 funds represent MTC’s funding source. 
 
Recommendation: 
Informational. 

35



This page intentionally left blank. 

36



Agenda Item IX.B 
June 16, 2011 

 
Solano County Transit 

(SolTrans) 
 
DATE:  June 13, 2011 
TO:  SolTrans Board 
FROM: Nancy Whelan, Finance Consultant 
RE:  Five Year Budget Projection 
 
 
This report will be provided under separate cover. 

37



This page intentionally left blank. 

38


	0611 Bd (01) SolTrans JPA Board Meeting Minutes_05-19-11
	SOLANO COUNTY TRANSIT (SOLTRANS)
	Draft Board Minutes for Meeting of
	May 19, 2011

	CLOSED SESSION
	CALL TO ORDER
	MEMBERS
	City of Benicia
	Mike Ioakimedes, Councilmember
	City of Vallejo, Chair
	Osby Davis, Mayor
	City of Vallejo
	Erin Hannigan, Councilmember
	MTC Representative
	Ex-Officio – STA Representative
	MEMBERS ABSENT:
	STAFF 
	City of Vallejo
	STA HR Consultant
	SolTrans Legal Counsel
	Bernadette Curry 
	STA Executive Director
	Daryl Halls
	STA Project Manager - Consultant
	John Harris
	STA Clerk of the Board
	Johanna Masiclat
	STA Director of Transit and Rideshare Services
	Elizabeth Richards
	City of Benicia
	Rob Sousa
	STA Transit Finance Consultant
	Nancy Whelan
	City of Vallejo
	Jeanine Wooley
	OTHERS PRESENT:
	OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT
	COMMENTS FROM STAFF:

	0611 Bd (02) FTA Compliance Requirements WIP
	Agenda Item VII.A

	0611 Bd (02.A) EEO Policy
	0611 Bd (02.b) Attach B 2010 Title VI Submission to FTA
	0611 Bd (02.C1) AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION WIP
	AYES:  _____________________________

	0611 Bd (02.c2)  OPINION OF COUNSEL
	0611 Bd (03) master transfer agreements w Vallejo and Benicia a
	Agenda Item VII.B
	June 16, 2011

	0611 Bd (04 ) Recommend approval of MV contract 6-16-11 (6)
	Agenda Item VIII.A
	June 16, 2011

	0611 Bd (05) SRTP June Status
	Agenda Item IX.A

	0611 Bd (06) 5-Yr Budget Cover Sheet
	Agenda Item IX.B




